
PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION AGENDA
Monday, October 08, 2018 - 6:00 PM

City Hall, Conference Room A, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport , OR 97365

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for
the DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING, or for other accommodations for persons with
disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City
Recorder at 541.574.0613.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

3. NEW BUSINESS

3.A Review Draft  VRD Code Amendments
Review of VRD Draft Code Amendments.pdf

4. ADJOURNMENT

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/250747/Review_of_VRD_Draft_Code_Amendments.pdf


City of Newport

Memorandum

Community Development
Department

To: Planning Commission/Commission Adviso Committ

From: Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director

Re: Review of Draft Code Amendments Forwarded by the Ad-Hoc Work Group

Enclosed, for your review, is a mark-up of the draft code amendments that the ad-hoc work group forwarded
to the Planning Commission for its consideration. Clean copies of Chapter 4.25 and Chapter 14.25, with the
changes the committee requested, will be distributed on Monday. We will also have the fourth, and final map
alternative available at that time.

The City Council has asked that they be given an opportunity to consider the revisions before the end of the
calendar year. That means the Planning Commission will need to initiate the legislative process following this
work session. Required 35-day notice has been sent to DLCD. The earliest the Planning Commission can
hold a hearing is November 12, 2018. We should discuss the scheduling of a second hearing, preferably
before the Thanksgiving holiday. That will allow the City Council to hold hearings on December 3, 2018 and
December 17, 2018. Because this proposal may impact property values, the City is required to provide notice
to all property owners that may be impacted by the changes. Such notice must adhere to the provisions of
ORS 227.186, a copy of which is enclosed. This will be a large mailing, and must occur at least 20-days prior
to your initial hearing.

Attached are copies of the draft minutes from the 10/3/18 ad-hoc work group meeting. This was their last
meeting, and the minutes include the motion they ultimately adopted. All of the materials considered by the
work group are posted on the City’s website at: hftp://newportoregon.gov/citygov/comm/vr.asp.

• Minutes from the 10-3-18 Ad-Hoc Work Group meeting
• Draft Short-Term Rental Regulations, with policy rationale
• ORS 227.186 Requirements for certain zone changes notices (i.e. Measure 56 notice)

Page 1 oIl

Date: October 5, 2018

Attachments

2



Draft MINUTES
City of Newport

Vacation Rental Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting #15
Newport Recreation Center, Room 124-B

Wednesday, October 3, 201$

AC Members Present: Carla Perry, Norman Ferber, Jamie Michel, Margaret Dailey, Bill Posner, Bonnie Saxton, Martha
Winsor, Don Andre, and Pam McElroy.

AC Members On Phone: Cheryl Connell

AC Members Absent: Lauri Hines, Charlotte Boxer, Braulio Escobar,

Planning Commission Liaison Present: Jim Hanselman.

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD), Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau.

Public Members Present: Wendy Engler, CM Hall, Bill Branigan, Rod Croteau, and Frank DeFilippis

1. Call to Order. The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m.

2. Disclosures. Tokos asked for conflicts of interest. Saxton, Ferber, and Michel disclosed they had potential conflicts of
interest. Dailey, Hanselman, Perry, Posner, Connell, McElroy, and Winsor stated they had no conflicts.

3. Approval of Minutes from the September 26, 2018 Meeting. Tokos asked for input on the minutes. None were heard.

MOTION was made by Michel, seconded by McElroy to approve the September 26, 2018 Vacation Rental Ad-Hoc meeting
minutes as presented. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.

4. Review Agenda, and Revise as Needed. Tokos asked for Items 4 and 5 on the agenda to be swapped to make sure everything
is wrapped up.

5. Committee Requests. Tokos reviewed the adoption schedule that was handed out to the AC. Posner asked how the elections
for the City Council (CC) would affect the schedule. Tokos said it depended on timing and explained what would happen
during the timeline. Michel asked if the work session meetings were open to public. Tokos said yes. Ferber was concerned
that Planning Commission (PC) and CC meetings overlapped. Tokos explained that it would give the CC a chance to review
before the final hearings. Ferber thought the VRD amendments were a significant issue and wanted to make sure they didn’t
get short shifted.

Andre entered the meeting and sited a potential conflict of interest.

6. Review Draft Code Amendments for Consistency with Policy Direction. Tokos reviewed what was discussed at the
previous meeting as far as the review of rationale of changes. Dailey suggesting having the Proof of Use be a fiscal year
instead of a year. Tokos to change.

Tokos started the conversation on additional operation requirements. Posner suggested defining timely manner. A discussion
ensued on the response time for complaints and whether a compliance vendor would cover complaints. Tokos said it was a
policy maker decision and would mean a complaint would go through the third party and then on to the owner. Michel was
concerned that putting the onus of tracking the complaints on who is receiving the complaints wasn’t good. Dailey said there
could be a requirement for both a diary by owner and tracking through an enforcement vendor. Tokos said the
recommendation to have a third party vendor for a centralized complaint system would mean it would have a record of the
complaint.

Michel suggested to removing “questions” on the list issues to respond to in a timely manner. The AC was in general
agreement. Winsor suggested adding that they are required to tell the complainant there is a third party vendor or city website
for them to register the complaint with. Perry asked if any language in the document that addresses complaints through a
complaint system. Tokos said there was language for an electronic availability of VRD information online but no language
to commit the city to a third party vendor as an ordinance. It would be an independent action. Michel wanted to make sure
there was a centralized complaint department and enforcement officer at the city. Tokos said it was included in the draft
motion he put together for the AC to recommend that the City retain a third party vendor to do this. He said it would go

1 Vacation Rental Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting 10/3/18.

3



under electronic availability. Perry requested it also be under complaints. Hanselman wanted it referenced that it had to be
recorded and the complaint number is also included on the sign posted outside the VED. Connell said part of the language
was to have all VRD post numbers outside property. She wanted to make sure it was a venue for people to call with
complaints and then have the VRD company number to track this was important. She thought both needed to be in place. A
discussion ensued regarding requiring the city to have an option to log complaints. Hanselman wanted to make sure an
infraction was not only dealt with but was recorded. A discussion ensued regarding the three strikes rule for VRDs with
problems, and how complaints would be addressed and recorded. Tokos to add language that the city would make a
centralized venue commitment. It would appear under complaints or another spot that made sense.

Tokos reviewed the guest registry next. McElroy was concerned that if there were changes in the guest registry it needed to
be reported to the management. She was concerned that information for emergency responders wouldn’t be accurately
recorded. Hanselman wanted guest registry information to be available to other necessary city staff. Tokos said the discussion
was to have it available for emergency responders but it could be redrafted. He would put two options to have the information
available for city staff and emergency responders.

Tokos reviewed mandatory posting next. Dailey requested they add the number and location of designated parking. Connell
wanted the approved and required onsite parking to be added. Tokos to add. Tokos reviewed emergency information and
noise levels next. Dailey suggested a nuisance separate provision under the additional operations category. Tokos would add
and include examples such as light pollution.

Occupancy, landscaping, and solid waste management was reviewed next. Perry asked to have the term “valet service”
added. The AC was in general agreement to add this.

Prohibited events were covered next. Michel didn’t think it was the City’s place to dictate what was going on in the unit.
She felt the catchall was in the other licensing compliance requirements. A discussion ensued regarding different types of
events and whether or not to include the language. Michel suggested changing “overnight” occupancy to “at any time” in
occupancy. Ferber thought the nature of the gathering was different and he was okay with family reunions. A discussion
ensued regarding whether or not to prohibit events, or limit to licensed occupancy at all times. Dailey suggested “We don’t
allow events in excess of occupancy”. Perry suggested “Exceeding the maximum occupancy at any time”. Tokos thought
that exceeding occupancy can be enforced reasonably by police. Michel asked if they could take out “overnight” occupancy
to be amended to just “occupancy”. Dailey suggested “group events in excess of occupancy”. Tokos would change the
occupancy to maximum occupancy, not overnight, and change to group event and make an example that they are limited to
occupancy of the unit. He said by changing it to occupancy, it was enforceable.

Inspections, appeals, violations and penalties were covered next. Perry suggested changing “may” to “shall’. Ferber didn’t
want it changed to make sure those who had violation in error weren’t charged. Tokos said there would be a warning first.
Hanselman asked how many warnings were given before violations. Tokos said people are very responsive to warnings and
typically took care of violations. A discussion ensued regarding how the City was notified on the corrections to violations.
Tokos suggested adding a “48 hour” reference to response time to the violation in the language under penalties. McEfroy
asked what the rolling timeframe was. Tokos said the timeframe would start from the first violation and why it was structured
as a 12-month period. Hanselman suggested the time period be longer than 12 months and set at 24 months. Tokos said the
AC was tightening things up with a cooling off period. A potential for a cap would help with this and they should leave it as
it was. Dailey wanted something added to say that if they lost their license twice they can’t get an endorsement again. Michel
questioned how the licenses of owners with multiple units would be handled when there was a violation at just one of their
units. Perry said there were no fines under penalties and asked if they could be mentioned. Tokos said they would make sure
that it was referenced to fine language.

Tokos reviewed the short-term rental land use regulations, purpose, and approval authority next. Dailey said that under the
“C” where it says if one or more of the standards cannot be met, it doesn’t lend itself to just parking. Tokos asked if it should
just be for parking. Connell asked what standards were eligible for a Condition Use permit (CU). Tokos said the only thing
that had been applied for a CU was parking and landscaping. Connell didn’t thinic owner should get a CU to decrease parking
and landscaping requirements. Tokos said they should consider long street blocks for CUs to allow a second VRD on a street
face. Perry asked if they were trying to limit CUs did they need to include it in this section. Tokos said typically CUs were
offered because rules didn’t always apply perfectly. Michel wanted it as an option at all times. Connell thought CUs shouldn’t
be an option. Tokos said he would note that there was some concern by some of the AC that it should be tailored or limited
in terms of what can qualify for CU review.

Tokos reviewed the submittal requirements and overlay zones next. Perry thought there had been a decision to no permit
VRDs in residential zones (R-l and R-2). A discussion ensued regarding why VRDs shouldn’t be allowed in R-1 and R-2
zones. Tokos asked for the rationale for not allowing VRDs in those zones. Saxton said a reason to prohibit VRDs was that
R-3 and R-4 zones were more prone to have more affordable housing than in R- 1 and R-2 zones. Hanselman said most of

2 Vacation Rental Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting 10/3/18.

4



the public feedback said to prohibit \TRDs in R-l and R-2 zones. He felt it was the AC’s duty to listen to the public. Connell
said that R-1 and R-2 zones were designed to have less traffic than R-3 and R-4. The burden on R-l and R-2 zones was
excessive because they weren’t designed for this. She thought that ifVRDs were allowed in R-l and R-2 zones, they needed
to be limited to a maximum number of days rented. A discussion ensued regarding the impact of VRDs on traffic of
residential neighborhoods. Tokos would add the language for prohibiting in R-1 and R-2 zones as a fourth alternative and
create an alternative map to illustrate where there zones were.

Tokos reviewed the approval standards next. Hanselman questioned included the “4-5%” cap in the text. Tokos said the CC
would want something to provide them council on how to set the cap total number basis. A discussion ensued regarding
what the AC agreed upon for the cap numbers. Tokos would add the language to say a discussion was to set the cap number
between 200-300 with an alternative ofjust 4 percent.

Tokos reviewed spacing alternatives next. Dailey wanted a defmition of what a long segment street was. Occupancy
alternatives were covered next. Michel reminded that “overnight” should be taken out for maximum occupancy.

Tokos reviewed the parking standards alternatives, shared access, landscaping and non-conforming short-term rental
alternatives next. Tokos explained that once the new rules went in to place, all licensed VRDs were non-conforming because
they were lawfully licensed but didn’t meet the current rules. He explained how each of the three alternatives would work
for non-conforming uses.

Tokos noted the transient room tax sheets provided to the AC. He noted that Airbnb was paying the largest amount of online
booking transient room tax payments. Tokos noted the documents shared with the AC that included and article from Escobar,
the Oregonian Article, the Washington Post Article, Wendy Engler’s letter, and Dailey’s article.

He asked for a motion.

Motion was made by Dailey, seconded by Ferber that the committee find the draft revisions to the Newport Municipal Code
related to short-term rentals, as amended at this meeting, reflect the information reviewed and discussed by the ad-hoc work
group and are generally consistent with the policy direction provided by the group. There are a number of policy alternatives
involving topic areas where we were unable to reach consensus. The Planning Commission and City Council will need to
resolve them and we, as individuals, may advocate for those we feel strongly about as the amendments move toward formal
adoption.

Additional work is needed to improve enforcement of short-term rentals and the ad-hoc work group strongly recommends
the city further evaluate, and possibly retain the services of a third-party vendor to develop a centralized complaint system
that facilitates transparency and citizen access to information.

We recommend that the draft code, policy option documents, summaries from the open houses, and all other information
reviewed by the ad-hoc work group be forwarded to the Planning Commission for its consideration.

Perry wanted it noted that possible hiring of a third party vendor would do monitoring, and asked to have “monitoring” be
added to the motion. Connell wanted the last sentence to add that “the summaries and comments as written were submitted”.
Hanselman asked to add to second paragraph for the PC and CC look at the Nye Beach overlay. Ferber thought this was
another conversation. Tokos said as a PC member, Hanselman had the power to raise this and ask for it to be moved on after
taking testimony at the Planning Commission level. He said it wasn’t specifically discussed as the AC group and this group’s
mandate was for \TRDs and was not a broader issue. Winsor said she appreciated the thought of adding something like this
but it didn’t seem to be something appropriate to include. The AC was in general agreement to add Perry and Connell’s
additions to the motion.

7. Public Comment. Rod Croteau addressed the PC. He noted that they had never defined occupancy before. He said there
was strong evidence that the affordable housing issue expanded in all zoning issues and should forget this. He thought zoning
was a blunt tool for what they were addressing here.

Frank DeFilippis addressed the AC. He was concerned about single point of contact and reporting back. He wanted to see a
single point to minimize the impact on neighbors when reporting. DeFilippis said that if called multiple times in one day
they should be counted as multiple violations. He thought zoning didn’t make sense and felt VRDs should be more channeled
for more commercial. DeFilippis noted what the occupancy rate of displacement for the community by VRDs. Was
concerned limiting growth of Newport.

Wendy Engler addressed the AC as a public member. She wanted to address the caps and asked what the concept was. Tokos
explained the difference between caps and prohibitions in areas. Engler asked if the license transferability would be

3 Vacation Rental Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting 10/3/18.

5



addressed. Tokos said there were three options that were discussed at the last meeting. Engler pointed out that the reason
that so many lots were R-3 & R-4 was because the lots were so small. She congratulated the AC.

Michel addressed the AC as a public member and spoke as an employer of 45 year round employees that mostly resided in
Newport. She stated that the industry did provide a lot ofjobs and wanted it on record.

CM Hall addressed the AC. She commended the AC on what they had done. She asked how the cap at 200 would go. Tokos
said they would look at how that options went depending on what alternatives were decided on. Hall wanted consistent
signage across VRDs. She noted the article about the Manzanita where the person was being sued for two million dollars
with people with friends and family coming in and out. She didn’t want the City of Newport to get into this situation.

8. Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 3:27 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau
Executive Assistant

4 Vacation Rental Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting 10/3/18.

6



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 1 of 26 

Draft Vacation Rental /Bed and Breakfast Code Amendments 
 

(Language shown with a double underline is added. Text in strikethrough is deleted.) 

Rationale for Changes  

 

CHAPTER 4.25  SHORT-TERM RENTAL BUSINESS LICENSE 

ENDORSEMENTS 

A new chapter is being created in the business license section of 

the Municipal Code.  It will include administrative, safety, and 

enforcement related provisions that are not required to be in a 

zoning ordinance.  This change also allows the short term rental 

endorsement requirements to be in the same chapter as the 

standards for other business license endorsements. 

  

4.25.005 Purpose 

 

A short-term rental business license endorsement is a permission to 

operate a short-term rental on property within the City of Newport.  

This chapter provides an administrative framework for licensing the 

annual operation of a short-term rental, in order to ensure the safety and 

convenience of renters, owners, and neighboring property owners; 

protect the character of residential neighborhoods; protect the City’s 

supply of needed housing; and address potential negative effects such 

as excessive noise, overcrowding, illegal parking, and nuisances (e.g. 

accumulation of refuse, light pollution, etc.). 

 

It is the intent of these regulations to strike a reasonable balance 

between the need to limit short-term rental options within 

neighborhoods to ensure compatibility, while also recognizing the 

benefits of short-term rentals in providing recreation and employment 

opportunities, as well as transitional housing for tourists, businesses, 

and others who are in need of housing for a limited duration. 

 

The purpose statement outlines the reason for the regulations 

contained in this chapter.  Language borrows from concepts 

contained in Newport’s existing code and the recently adopted 

Hood River ordinance.  It also addresses the concepts listed under 

“Rationale for Regulating” in the Committee’s “Policy Options by 

Topic Area” document.  This chapter contains administrative 

provisions for regulating short-term rentals.  A similar purpose 

statement will be included in NMC Chapter 14.25, which will 

include the more substantive, land use regulations. 

 

Reference to nuisance provisions and light pollution added at the 

ad-hoc work group’s request on 9/26/18. 

7



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 2 of 26 

4.25.010 Definitions 

 

The following definitions apply in this chapter. 

 

Authorized Agent.  A property management company or other entity or 

person who has been designated by the owner to act on their behalf.  

An authorized agent may or may not be the designated point of contact 

for complaints. 

 

Bed and Breakfast Facility. An owner occupied, single-family dwelling 

where meals are provided for a fee on a daily or weekly room rental 

basis, not to exceed 30 consecutive days. 

 

Bedroom.  A habitable room that (a) is intended to be used primarily 

for sleeping purposes; (b) contains at least 70-square feet; and (c) is 

configured so as to take the need for a fire exit into account. 

 

Dwelling Unit.  A single unit providing complete independent living 

facilities for one or more persons, including permanent provisions for 

living, sleeping, eating, cooking and sanitation. 

 

Home share.  A short term rental, other than a Bed and Breakfast 

Facility, where a portion of a dwelling unit is rented while the 

homeowner is present.  For the purposes of this definition, “present” 

means the homeowner is staying in the dwelling overnight for the 

duration of the rental. 

 

Owner.  Means the natural person(s) or legal entity that owns and holds 

legal or equitable title to the property.   

 

Short Term Rental. A dwelling unit that is rented to any person on a 

day to day basis or for a period of less than thirty (30) consecutive 

nights. 

Definitions are included for key terms.  A definition for authorized 

agent has been added at the request of the City Attorney so that it 

is clear that the regulations apply to intermediaries and not just the 

property owner.  A definition for short-term rental is included as a 

catch-all for transient rental uses (i.e. B&Bs, vacation rentals, and 

home shares).  The definition for dwelling unit aligns with the 

definition of the same term contained in the 2017 Oregon 

Residential Specialty Code 

 

A definition for bedroom does not exist in the Newport Municipal 

Code or Building Code.  The new definition aligns with the 

definition for this term contained in the Residential Landlord and 

Tenant Law statute (ORS 90.262(4)(a)). 

 

A definition for home share has been provided, as requested by 

the ad-hoc work group and it contains language stipulating that the 

owner reside within the dwelling when the rental is occurring.   

 

Definitions for owner, licensee, and transfer have been added to 

provide added context given that the proposed code will include a 

cap on the total number of annual business licenses issued.   

 

Clarification of the “home share” and “vacation rental” definitions 

made at the request of the ad-hoc work group on 9/26/18. 

8



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 3 of 26 

 

Transfer.  Means the addition or substitution of owners not included on 

the original business license endorsement application, whether or not 

there is consideration.  If multiple owners exist on a license, individual 

owners may be removed from the license without constituting a 

transfer. 

 

Vacation Rental.  A short term rental, other than a Bed and Breakfast 

Facility or Home share, where the entire dwelling unit is rented for less 

than 30 consecutive days. 

 

4.25.015  Annual Short-Term Rental Business License Endorsement 

Required 

 

No owner of property within the Newport city limits may advertise, 

offer, operate, rent or otherwise make available for occupancy or use a 

short-term rental without a business license with a short-term rental 

endorsement.  Advertise or offer includes through any media, whether 

written, electronic, web-based, digital, mobile or otherwise. 

 

Establishes that a business license endorsement is required to 

advertise, offer, operate, rent or otherwise make available for 

occupancy or use a short-term rental.  Incorporates concepts 

currently listed under NMC 14.25.020(A) and NMC 14.25.090(A) 

and (B). 

4.25.020  Application Information and Filing Fee 

 

A.  Applications for short-term rental business license endorsements 

are to be on forms provided by the City, and shall; include the 

following: 

 

1. Owner Information.  Owner’s name, permanent residence 

address, telephone number, email address (if available) and short-

term rental address and telephone number.   

 

This section sets out the information that must be submitted to the City 

of Newport Finance Department to obtain a new business license 

endorsement, or to renew an existing endorsement.  The requirement 

that owners possess liability insurance for the short-term rental is new, 

and has been added at the ad-hoc work group’s request.  The 

Community Development Department will be responsible for verifying 

that the land use standards in NMC 14.25 have been met.  This will be 

handled as a Land Use Compatibility Statement (LUCS).  The LUCS 

includes substantive criteria, such as verification that a unit is being 

located in a permissible area, that there is room within a license caps, 

and that standards such as proximity limits, parking, and landscaping 

will be met.  Checklists establishing that fire safety and structural safety 

9



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 4 of 26 

2.  Authorized Agent.  The name, telephone number, mailing 

address and email of a property management company or other 

entity or person who has been designated by the owner to act on 

their behalf. 

 

3. Representative Information.  The name, telephone number, 

mailing address and email of a local representative who can be 

contacted concerning use of the property or complaints related to 

operation of the short-term rental.  For the purposes of this 

requirement, local means the representative’s address is within 30 

minutes travel time of the subject property. 

 

4. Liability Insurance.  Letter of intent to insure (for new 

applications) or cCertificate of insurance (for renewals) establishing 

that the owner will have or has liability insurance which expressly 

covers the vacation rental operations on the subject property in the 

amount of $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and 

property damage. 

 

5. Land Use Authorization.  A land use compatibility statement, 

signed by the Community Development Director or designee and 

that is current within 90-days, indicating that the short-term rental 

satisfies the land use standards for short-term rentals listed in NMC 

Chapter 14.25. 

 

6. Occupancy.  Occupancy limits and number of bedrooms (as 

specified in the Land Use Authorization). 

 

7.  Parking.  Statement that required parking spaces are available, 

with a dated photo(s) submitted of interior and exterior parking 

spaces.  A site plan including a parking diagram of the parking 

spaces shall also be provided. 

 

standards have been met must also be completed prior to an application 

being accepted.  If a cap is put in place, then the City will reserve a 

license spot for 90-days to allow time for these approvals to be obtained. 

 

A proof of residential use requirement applies to home shares and 

B&Bs, since they must establish that there is a permanent resident in the 

unit.  Sample “good neighbor guidelines” are attached.  A Newport 

version will be developed, based upon whatever final version of these 

code amendments is adopted.  Given available resources, it is likely that 

building inspections will occur when there is a change in ownership.  

Fire Inspections will probably occur annually, or on a lottery basis.  

Both provisions have been drafted to provide flexibility. 

 

Draft language borrows concepts from the existing Newport code, and 

from samples codes adopted by Bend, Hood River, and Lincoln City. 

 

Liability insurance provision clarified to recognize that new applicant’s 

will not necessarily have insurance in place at the time a business 

license endorsement is filed.  Change made at the request of the ad-hoc 

work group on 9/26/18. 

10



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 5 of 26 

8. Proof of Residential Use (for Home shares and Bed and 

Breakfast Facilities).  At least two of the following items shall be 

submitted as evidence that the dwelling is the primary residence of 

the owner. 

 

a.  A copy of the voter registration 

b.  A copy of an Oregon Driver’s License or Identification Card 

Listing Number 

c.  A copy of federal income tax return from last tax year (page 

one only and financial data should be redacted) 

 

9.  Good Neighbor Guidelines.  Acknowledgement of receipt and 

review of a copy of the good neighbor guidelines.  In addition, 

evidence that the good neighbor guidelines has been effectively 

relayed to short-term rental tenants, by incorporating it into the 

rental contract, including it in the rental booklet, posting it online, 

providing it in a conspicuous place in the dwelling unit, or a similar 

method. 

 

10.  Listing Number.  For renewals, the listing numbers or website 

addresses of where the short term rental advertises. 

 

11.  Fire Safety.  Completed checklist identifying that the unit 

complies with the fire safety standards listed in NMC 

4.25.030(C)(5). 

 

12.  Structural Safety.  Completed checklist identifying that the unit 

complies with the Structural safety standards listed in NMC 

4.25.030(C)(6). 

 

13.  Waste Management.  Proof of garbage service as required in 

NMC 4.25.030(C)(7). 

 

11



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 6 of 26 

14.  Other Requirements.  Such other information as the City 

Manager or designee deems reasonably necessary to administer this 

chapter. 

 

B.  Incomplete Application.  If a license application does not include all 

required materials, the application will be considered incomplete and 

the City will notify the applicant, in writing, explaining the information 

required.  If the applicant provides the missing required information 

within 30 calendar days of the date of the notice, the application will be 

reviewed.  If the applicant does not provide the required information, 

the application will be deemed withdrawn and the City will refund the 

application fee. 

 

C.  License Fee.  The fee for the application of a short-term rental 

business license endorsement, and any of its components requiring city 

action, shall be established by resolution of the City Council. 

 
 

4.25.025  Term of Annual Business License Endorsement and 

Transferability 

 

A.  Term.  A short-term rental business license endorsement shall be 

issued for a period of 12-months, effective July 1st of each year, and 

may be renewed annually by the owner provided all applicable 

standards of this chapter are met. 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

B.1. Transferability.  The business license endorsement shall be issued 

in the name of the owner(s) and is not transferable. 

 

or 

Establishes that business license endorsements are valid for a period of 

12-months, as the ad-hoc work group discussed.  Transferability is 

particularly relevant if a license cap is imposed.  Alternatives listed 

reflect the options discussed with the ad-hoc work group. 

12



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 7 of 26 

 

B.2. Transferability.  The business license endorsement shall be issued 

in the name of the owner(s) and is transferrable only in those cases 

where the property is commercially zoned. 

 

or  

 

B.3. Transferability.  The business license endorsement shall be issued 

in the name of the owner(s) and is transferrable in those cases where 

the property is within, or across the street from, a commercial zone. 

 

4.25.030 Business License Endorsement and Endorsement Renewal. 

 

A.  Endorsement Must Be Obtained.  An endorsement to a business 

license for a short-term rental shall be obtained and renewed as 

required in this section.  The ability to operate a short-term rental in the 

City of Newport shall be discontinued for failure to obtain or renew an 

endorsement to operate as provided in this chapter.  

 

B.  Application and Renewal Application Process.  A person engaging 

in a short-term rental who has not yet obtained a business license 

endorsement, or who is required to renew an existing endorsement, 

shall do so as follows: 

 

1.  Time of Application.  

 

a. Existing Non-Conforming Short-Term Rentals.  A business 

license endorsement renewal application completed in 

accordance with the provisions of NMC 4.25.020, is due on July 

1, 2019 and annually every year thereafter. 

 

Approval standards must be met at the time of application or renewal.  

Those listed are administrative in nature, as this chapter is not intended 

to contain land use regulations. Timing for applications and renewals 

aligns with how the Finance Department handles business licensing.  A 

firm deadline is provided for renewals, after which an endorsement will 

expire. 

 

The ad-hoc work group wanted designated contacts to be local, to help 

improve response times.  The new language includes a requirement that 

they be able to respond to the premises within 30-minutes. 

 

Two options are provided for notice.  The city does not have staff to 

provide annual mailings to property owners within 250-feet of every 

short-term rental.  The purpose of a mailing requirement is to provide 

neighbors with contact information should they have concerns.  That 

need is addressed with the new sign posting requirement.  An alternative 

gives the owner the option of posting a sign or distributing contact 

information to neighbors on an annual basis. 

 

Non-illuminated signs up to 2 square feet in size are currently permitted 

in R-1 and R-2 zones, which contains the most restrictive provisions 

(NMC 10.10.075(A)).  Signs of this size also appear to be in line with 

what other jurisdictions require for short-term rentals. 

13



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 8 of 26 

b. New Short-Term Rentals. A business license endorsement for 

a short-term rental shall be obtained before beginning 

operations.  Endorsement applications, completed in accordance 

with the provisions of NMC 4.25.020, may be submitted and 

issued at any time.  The endorsement may be renewed annually 

thereafter on July 1st of each year. 

 

c. Sale of Property.  For business license endorsements that are 

eligible to be transferred pursuant to NMC 4.25.025(B), Upon 

change in ownership of a property subject to a short-term rental 

endorsement, it is the obligation and responsibility of the new 

owner to obtain a new endorsement in order to operate the 

short-term rental.  The new owner shall have 60 days from the 

date of ownership (closing of the sale) to apply for and receive a 

new operating business license endorsement.  The business 

license endorsement obtained by the prior owner shall remain in 

effect during the 60-day period within which the new owner 

must obtain an endorsement. 

 

2.  Notice.  On or about July 1st of each year, the City shall send 

notice to owners of property with short-term rental endorsements 

informing them that the endorsement must be renewed no later than 

August 15th of each year and that failure to do so will result in 

expiration of the endorsement.  Notice shall be sent by first-class 

mail to the address the owner provided with the endorsement on file 

with the City. 

 

3.  Expiration of Endorsement.  Failure of an owner to renew an 

endorsement by August 15th shall result in expiration of the 

endorsement, and the ability of the owner to operate shall be 

conclusively presumed to be discontinued with no further action by 

the City.  For new owners, once the 60 day grace period to apply for 

a license expires, as referenced in NMC 4.25.030(B)(1)(c) of this 

 

The fires and building safety standards listed in this section were 

reviewed by, or discussed with, the ad-hoc committee.  Many of the 

safety standards were already in place, and they are being updated with 

this package of code amendments.   

 

New language is added committing the City to making Short-term rental 

information available electronically to improve citizen access to the 

information.  This is something the ad-hoc work group believes is 

needed to improve transparency. 

 

Proof of use requirements are new and intended to ensure that license 

holders are actually using units as short-term rentals.  This concerns 

about “license hoarding” under a cap system. 

 

Endorsements that are revoked or subject to a 2-year cooling off period 

are not eligible for newel.  This is new language request by the ad-hoc 

work group. 

 

Sale of property provision is relevant if transferability options B2 or B3 

are selected.  The sale of property provision will be removed if business 

license endorsements are not transferable (transferability option B1).  

Language has been added to make it clear that the old endorsement will 

remain in effect during the 60-day period.  Language in the “contact 

information” clause has been clarified such that a qualified person must 

be close enough that they can reach a unit within 30 minutes.  The 

“notice to neighbor” option two has been eliminated as there was 

consensus amongst the ad-hoc work group that signs should be required 

for all short-term rentals.  Proof of use language revised to 30 days in a 

fiscal year.  Changes were requested by the ad-hoc work group at its 

9/26/18 meeting. 

14



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 9 of 26 

section, the ability to operate shall be conclusively presumed to be 

discontinued with no further action by the City. 

 

C.  Approval Standards.  The owner or authorized agent has the burden 

of proof to demonstrate compliance with standards for the approval or 

renewal of an endorsement.  The approval standards also serve as 

continuing code compliance obligations of the owner.  To receive 

approval, an owner or authorized agent must demonstrate that the 

approval standards listed below have been satisfied: 

 

1.  Zoning.  The property is in compliance with requirements of 

NMC Chapter 14.25. 

 

2.  Contact Information.  The owner or authorized agent has 

provided information sufficient to verify a qualified person will be 

available to be contacted about use of the short-term rental during 

and after business hours.  The qualified person shall be available to 

be contacted by telephone to ensure a response to the short-term 

rental address at all hours (24 hours a day, seven days a week) while 

the dwelling unit is occupied for rent.  The qualified person must be 

able to respond reachto the premises within 30 minutes.  The 

individual identified as the “qualified person” may be changed from 

time to time throughout the term of a license.  To do so, the license 

information shall be revised with the city at least 14-days prior to 

the date the change takes effect, except when the failure to do so is 

beyond the owner or authorized agent’s control.  In an emergency 

or absence, contact forwarding information to a qualified person 

may be provided to the owner or authorized agent.  In the case of 

home shares, the contact person shall be the permanent resident 

who will be hosting the transient accommodations. 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

15



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 10 of 26 

3.1  Notice to Neighbors.  The owner or authorized agent shall post 

a small, non-illuminated sign on the premises, not to exceedbetween 

1- 2 square feet in size, containing the owner and/or representatives 

contact information.  Such sign shall be placed in a location clearly 

visible from the adjacent street.  In the event the City establishes a 

24/7 hotline for dispatching calls to operators of short-term rentals, 

then the contact information contained on the placard or sign shall 

be that of the firm providing the dispatch service. 

 

or 

 

3.2  Notice to Neighbors.  The owner or authorized agent shall 

either: (a) provide an annual mailing or otherwise distribute by 

hand, a flier to neighbors within a 250-foot radius of the short-term 

rental property containing the owner and/or representatives contact 

information, or (b) post a small, non-illuminated sign on the 

premises, not to exceed 2 square feet in size, in a location clearly 

visible from the adjacent street that contains the owner and/or 

representatives contact information.  In the event the City 

establishes a 24/7 hotline for dispatching calls to operators of short-

term rentals, then the contact information contained on the flier or 

placard/sign shall be that of the firm providing the dispatch service. 

 

4.  Electronic Availability.  The City will make a database 

electronically accessible within which any person can enter in an 

address of a short term rental operator and obtain the owner, 

authorized agent, and/or representative’s name, telephone number, 

and email address. 

 

5.  Fire and Emergency Safety.  A completed checklist for fire 

safety (fire extinguishers, smoke alarms, carbon monoxide 

detectors, unobstructed exits, etc.) shall be required with each new 

endorsement and renewal.  The owner or authorized agent shall be 

16



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 11 of 26 

responsible for completing the fire safety checklist and ensuring 

continued compliance.  Verification by the City of Newport Fire 

Marshall shall be required prior to issuance of a new endorsement 

and may be required for renewals at the City Manager’s discretion. 

 

6.  Structural Safety.  A completed checklist, signed by the City of 

Newport Building Official, indicating that the short-term rental has 

been inspected and complies with the building safety standards 

listed below.  Such checklist shall be completed prior to issuance of 

a new endorsement and may be required for renewals at the City 

Manager’s discretion. 

 

a.  Bedrooms shall have an operable emergency escape window 

or exterior door with a minimum opening size of 5.7 sq. ft. (5.0 

sq. ft. at grade floor), with minimum net clear dimensions of 20-

inches in width and 24-inches in height and having a sill height 

not more than 44-inches above the finished floor. 

 

b.  All stairs with 4 or more risers shall have a handrail on at 

least one side.  Handrails shall be secure, continuous, and have 

returns at each end. 

 

c.  The open sides of stairs, decks, porches or other walking 

surfaces more than 30-inches above grade or the floor below 

shall have guardrails configured such that a 4-inch sphere 

cannot pass through. 

 

d.  Windows within a 24-inch arc of doors and glass within 

bathtub or shower enclosures shall be safety glazed, or have an 

equivalent means of protection. 

 

e.  Wood frame decks shall be structurally sound.  In cases 

where a deck supports a hot tub or other features of a similar 

17



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 12 of 26 

size and weight, engineering analysis of the supports may be 

required. 

 

f.  Electrical plug-ins and light switches shall have faces 

platesfaceplates. 

 

g.  Electrical breaker boxes shall have all circuits labeled, and 

empty breakers spaces must be plugged. 

 

h.  GFCI (Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter) protection shall be 

provided for exterior, kitchen, and bathroom receptacles. 

 

i.  Functioning smoke detectors shall be installed in all 

bedrooms and outside each bedroom in hallways or other rooms 

providing access to bedrooms, and on each story including 

basements. 

 

j.  Functioning carbon monoxide alarms shall be installed if the 

unit (a) contains a heater, fireplace, appliance or cooking source 

that uses coal, kerosene, petroleum products, wood or other 

fuels that emit carbon monoxide as a by-product of combustion; 

or (b) includes an attached garage with an opening that 

communicates directly with a living space. Such alarms shall be 

installed in compliance with State Fire Marshal Rules and any 

applicable requirements of the State Building Code, and there 

shall be available in the premises a written notice containing 

instructions for testing the alarm. 

 

k.  Water heaters shall be strapped and secured in accordance 

with seismic protections standards, with a TEP (Temperature 

and Pressure Relief) line that is run to an approved location. 

 

l.  A 2A10BC fire extinguisher shall be provided on each floor. 

18



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 13 of 26 

 

m.  Address numbers shall be posted and visible from the street. 

 

n.  Any violation of applicable codes that the Building Official 

determines to be hazardous shall be corrected prior to use of the 

dwelling as a vacation rental. 

 

7.  Proof of Use.  For renewals, room tax remittance records show 

that the unit has been rented at least 30 days once during the 

previouswithin the  12 months fiscal year. 

 

8.  Room Tax Compliance.  The unit shall be in compliance with 

room tax requirements of Chapter 3.05 of the Newport Municipal 

Code. 

 

9. Violations.  A short-term rental business license endorsement that 

is suspended or revoked may shall not be renewed.  An owner 

whose endorsement has been revoked shall not be eligible to 

reapply for a new endorsement involving the same property for a 

period of two years. 

 

D.  Additional Ongoing Operational Requirements 

 

1.  Complaints.  The owner or representative shall respond to 

neighborhood questions, concerns, or complaints in a timely manner 

and shall maintain a written record of complaints, the dates they 

were received, and efforts taken to resolve issues that have been 

raised.  The written record shall be provided to the City upon 

request. 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

These operational requirements are ongoing obligations that short-term 

rental operators must meet (as opposed to Approval Standards which are 

checked by the Finance Department at time of application or renewal).   

 

Information related to the handling of complaints, guest registry 

requirements, emergency information, and noise are similar to existing 

city rules.  Mandatory posting requirements are explicit instructions for 

the type of information that must be reflected on an endorsement. 

 

Ongoing obligations for parking, occupancy, landscaping and waste 

management are spelled out.  The section also includes the event 

prohibition requested by the ad-hoc work group. 

19



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 14 of 26 

 

2A.  Guest Registry.  Owner or designee shall maintain a guest and 

vehicle register for each tenancy. The register shall include the 

name, home address, and phone number of the primary tenant; the 

total number of occupants; vehicle license plate numbers of all 

vehicles used by the tenants, and the date of the rental period. This 

information shall be provided to city emergency responders upon 

request. 

 

or 

 

2B.  Guest Registry.  Owner or designee shall maintain a guest and 

vehicle register for each tenancy. The register shall include the 

name, home address, and phone number of the primary tenant; the 

total number of occupants; vehicle license plate numbers of all 

vehicles used by the tenants, and the date of the rental period. This 

information shall be provided to the city upon request. 

 

3.  Mandatory Postings.  The short-term rental business license 

endorsement issued by the City shall be displayed in a prominent 

location within the interior of the dwelling adjacent to the front 

door.  The endorsement will contain the following information: 

 

a. A number or other identifying mark unique to the short-term 

rental endorsement which indicates that it was issued by the 

City of Newport, with date of expiration. 

 

b.  The name of the owner or authorized agent and a telephone 

number where the owner or authorized agent may be contacted. 

 

c.  The property address. 

 

d.  The number of approved parking spaces. 

 

Compliance with nuisance codes and the requirement that liability 

insurance be maintained were added so that it is clear that they are 

ongoing obligations. A policy alternative was added for guest registry 

standards that would make the information available to any city 

department, not just emergency service providers.  An example would 

be the City’s finance department, if they were to need the information 

for room tax auditing purposes.  Language has been added requiring 

designated parking be used by tenants and the events provision was 

revised to state that group events are permitted as long as room 

occupancy limits are not exceeded.  Reference to “valet service” aligns 

with how Thompson Sanitary describes that service.  Changes requested 

by ad-hoc committee on 9/26/18 and 10/3/18. 

20



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 15 of 26 

 

e.  The maximum overnight occupancy permitted for the short-

term rental. 

 

f.  Any required information or conditions specific to the 

operating license. 

 

g.  The City of Newport official logo. 

 

4.  Emergency Information.  Owner or designee shall provide 

information within the dwelling unit to inform and assist renters in 

the event of a natural disaster, power outage, or other emergency. 

Required information includes, but is not limited to: 

 

a. A tsunami evacuation map produced by Lincoln County 

Emergency Services, Oregon Department of Geology and 

Mineral Industries or other agency with similar authority. 

 

b. Phone numbers and addresses for emergency responders and 

utility providers. 

 

c. Other information as established by resolution of the City 

Council. 

 

5.  Noise.  Noise levels shall conform to the requirements of 

Chapter 8.15 of the Newport Municipal Code. 

 

6.  Nuisance.  The short-term rental shall be used in a manner that 

does create a public nuisance as defined in Chapter 8.10 of the 

Newport Municipal Code.  

 

67.  Required Parking.  Off-street parking spaces approved for 

short-term rental use shall be available and are to be used by to 

21



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 16 of 26 

tenants at all times that the unit is rented.  A parking diagram of 

illustrating the location of the approved parking spaces shall be 

provided to tenants and be available in a prominent location within 

the short-term rental dwelling.   

 

78.  Occupancy.  Maximum overnight occupancy shall be limited to 

that which is specified in the Land Use Authorization. 

 

89.  Landscaping.  Required landscaping shall be maintained.  

Changes may be made to the type and location of required 

landscaping as long as 50% of the front yard, and 40% of the total 

lot area remains landscaped. 

 

910.  Solid Waste Management.  Weekly solid waste disposal 

service shall be provided while the dwelling is occupied as a short-

term rental.  The owner or authorized agent shall provide for regular 

garbage removal from the premises, and trash receptacles shall be 

stored or screened out of plain view of the street.  City may require 

that an owner or authorized agent utilized solid waste collection 

valet service with assisted pick-up in circumstances where there 

have been verified complaints that a short-term rental is not 

adhering to these requirements.  For the purpose of this section, 

assisted pick-upvalet service means the collection driver retrieves 

the cart from where it is stored, rolls it out for service, and then 

places it back in its original location. 

 

11. Liability Insurance.  Liability insurance which expressly covers 

the vacation rental operations on the subject property in the amount 

of $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property 

damage. 

 

1012.  Group Events Prohibited.  Company retreats, weddings, 

rehearsal dinners, family reunions and similar gatherings are 

22



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 17 of 26 

prohibited permitted on the premises of a short-term rental during 

periods of transient use provided the total number of individuals in 

the dwelling unit does not exceed occupancy limits. 

 

4.25.035  Inspections 

 

Dwelling units for which a short-term rental business license 

endorsement is being sought, or has been obtained, shall be subject to 

initial inspection, and periodic re-inspection, by the City to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of this chapter.  The timeframe for such 

inspections is subject to the City’s discretion and available resources. 

 

This section establishes the City’s right to perform inspections.  It is 

similar to existing language in 14.25.060(C). 

4.25.040 Appeals. 

 

A decision on a short-term rental business license endorsement 

application or renewal may be appealed as provided in NMC 4.05.075. 

Appeals of business licenses and business license endorsements are 

addressed under NMC 4.05.075, Appeal, which states: 

 

A. Any person aggrieved by the City Manager’s (i) denial of a business 

license application; (ii) revocation of a business license; (iii) assessment 

of business license application fee or business license annual fees; or 

(iv) application of any rules or regulations pertaining to this Chapter; 

shall have the right to appeal to the City Council. The applicant or 

licensee shall file with the City Council a written statement setting forth 

fully the grounds for the appeal within twenty (20) calendar days after 

either: (i) the day the notice of denial is issued or the day the of 

revocation is mailed; (ii) the day the disputed fees are assessed; or (iii) 

the day that the rules or regulations were misapplied according to the 

applicant’s or licensee’s allegation. 

 

B. The City Council shall set a time and place for a hearing on the 

appeal within thirty (30) calendar days after receiving the appeal. Notice 

of the appeal hearing shall be mailed to the applicant or licensee’s last 

known address at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the hearing. 

During the hearing, the applicant or licensee shall have an opportunity to 

23



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 18 of 26 

present in writing or orally the grounds for the appeal. The decision and 

order of the City Council on such appeal shall be final and conclusive. 

4.25.045  Violations. 

 

Penalties, as specified in section 4.25.050, may shall be imposed for 

one or more of the following violations: 

 

A. Advertising; renting; using; or offering for use, occupancy or rent; a 

short-term rental where the owner does not hold a valid endorsement 

issued pursuant to this section. 

 

B. Advertising; renting; using; or offering for use, occupancy or rent; a 

short-term rental in a manner that does not comply with the 

endorsement requirements of Chapter 4.25. 

 

C. Failure to comply with the endorsement standards and operational 

requirements of Chapter 4.25. 

 

D. Failure by the owner to pay the transient room tax required by 

Chapter 3.05 of the Newport Municipal Code. 

 

E. Failure of the owner or owner’s representative to respond to tenant, 

citizen or City complaints or inquiries. “Failure to respond” occurs if 

City staff is unable to reach the owner or designated representative 

after three attempts within a 48-hour period, using the information that 

the owner or designee has on file with the City. 

 

This language is taken from NMC 14.25.090 and are the existing 

violation provisions.  The 48-hour provision added at the request of the 

ad-hoc work group on 10/3/18. 

 

 

4.25.050 Penalties. 

 

Penalties for a violation of subsection 4.25.040(A) shall be a civil 

infraction to be enforced pursuant to the provisions listed in NMC 

While a license can be revoked administratively, state land use laws 

specify that different rules must be followed by jurisdictions when 

revoking final land use decisions.  That language reads as follows: 

 

24



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 19 of 26 

Chapter 2.15. Where the owner possesses a valid short-term rental 

endorsement, the penalties for violations of 4.25.040 (B-E) shall be as 

follows:  

 

A. For the first violation within a 12-month period, City shall issue a 

written warning to owner. 

 

B. For the second violation within a 12 month period, City shall 

suspend owner’s short-term rental endorsement for 30 days. 

 

C. For the third violation within a 12-month period: 1) City shall 

revoke owner’s short-term rental endorsement; and 2) where an 

endorsement includes a Conditional Use Permit, city shall also initiate 

the revocation procedure as outlined under 14.52.150. 

14.52.150 Revocation of Decisions 

In the event an applicant, or the applicant’s successor in interest, fails to 

fully comply with all conditions of approval or otherwise does not 

comply fully with the city’s approval, the city may institute a revocation 

proceeding under this section. 

 

A. Type I, Type II, and Type III decisions may be revoked or modified 

if the Planning Commission determines a substantial likelihood that any 

of the following situations exists: 

1. One or more conditions of the approval have not been implemented or 

have been violated: or 

2. The activities of the use, or the use itself, are substantially different 

from what was approved or represented by the applicant. 

B. A revocation shall be processed as a Type III decision. The 

Community Development Department or any private complaining party 

shall have the burden of proving, based on substantial evidence in the 

whole record, that the applicant or the applicant’s successor has in some 

way violated the city’s approval. 

C. Effect of revocation. In the event that the permit approval is revoked, 

the use or development becomes illegal. The use or development shall 

be terminated within thirty days of the date the revocation final order is 

approved by the Planning Commission, unless the decision provides 

otherwise. In the event the Planning Commission’s decision on a 

revocation request is appealed, the requirement to terminate the use shall 

be stayed pending a final, unappealed decision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 20 of 26 

CHAPTER 14.25   SHORT-TERM RENTAL LAND USE 

REGULATIONS 

 

14.25.005  Purpose 

 

This chapter establishes criteria by which short-term rental uses may be 

permitted in order to ensure the safety and convenience of renters, 

owners, and neighboring property owners; protect the character of 

residential neighborhoods; protect the City’s supply of needed housing; 

and address potential negative effects such as excessive noise, 

overcrowding, illegal parking, and nuisances (e.g. accumulation of 

refuse, light pollution, etc.).   

 

It is the intent of these regulations to strike a reasonable balance 

between the need to limit short-term rental options within 

neighborhoods to ensure compatibility, while also recognizing the 

benefits of short-term rentals in providing recreation and employment 

opportunities, as well as transitional housing for tourists, businesses, 

and others who are in need of housing for a limited duration. 

 

Similar to the purpose language in 4.25.005, except that this 

chapter contains the land use criteria used to establish if a short-

term rental use is permissible (as opposed to the administrative 

framework for licensing them). 

 

Changes to purpose section mirror those made to the Chapter 4.25 

provisions as requested by ad-hoc work group on 10/3/18. 

14.25.010  Approval Authority 

 

A. Upon receipt of a request by an owner or authorized agent to 

complete a land use compatibility statement for a short-term rental 

the Community Development Director, or designee, shall determine 

if the request satisfies the standards of 14.25.030.  If the request 

satisfies the standards, then the Director shall sign the statement 

confirming that short-term rental is a permitted use.  Such action is 

ministerial and, as a non-discretionary act, is not subject to appeal. 

 

B. In the event that the Community Development Director or designee, 

determines that an application does not meet one or more of the 

Sets out the steps for how the Community Development 

Department will respond to requests for Land Use Compatibility 

Statement (LUCS) sign-off.  Language is similar to the existing 

process outlined in NMC 14.25.030.  Conditional Use Permit 

approval continues to be an option if an approval standard cannot 

be met. 

 

Ad-hoc work group expressed some concern about leaving the 

conditional use permit option open ended.  The Planning 

Commission should consider whether or not any of the standards 

in NMC 14.25.030 should be ineligible for conditional use 

approval.  If spacing standards are adopted in line with the options 

26



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 21 of 26 

standards of 14.25.030, then the land use compatibility statement 

shall not be signed. 

 

C. If one or more of the standards under 14.25.030 cannot be met, an 

owner may seek relief from those standards through a conditional 

use permitting process, pursuant to 14.34.010.  Such an application 

is subject to review by the Planning Commission via a Type III 

decision making process, consistent with 14.52.010, and is to be 

limited in scope to those standards that cannot be satisfied. 

 

D.  A Conditional Use Permit may authorize more than one vacation 

rental on street segments where more than five lots or parcels front 

the street.  In such cases, no more than one vacation rental may be 

permitted for every five lots or parcels fronting the street.   

 

DE. An approved Conditional Use Permit that grants relief from, or 

provides alternative requirements to, one or more of the standards 

of 14.25.030 shall serve as evidence that standards have been 

satisfied so that the Director can sign the land use compatibility 

statement. 

 

listed in NMC 14.25.030(B), then it is appropriate to allow for the 

approval of additional vacation rentals in excess of those spacing 

standards in cases where there are long blocks.  This was 

discussed with the ad-hoc work group, and the language has been 

added addressing the issue.  The proposed language is similar to 

that which is used by the City of Durango. 

14.25.015  Submittal Requirements 

 

Land use compatibility statements shall be submitted on a form 

provided by the Community Development Department, and shall 

include the following: 

 

A.  Site plan, drawn to scale, showing the dimensions, property lines, 

existing buildings, landscaped area, and off-street parking locations. 

 

B.  Floorplan of the dwelling unit that identifies the rooms dedicated to 

short-term rental use. 

This section identifies the items an owner or their authorized agent 

must submit with a LUCS form.  Borrows from NMC 14.25.040, 

but include additional requirements, such as providing a floorplan 

identifying the rooms to be rented, and a requirement that legal 

documents be provided when relying upon shared access.  The 

information listed is needed so that the City can confirm that the 

approval standards of 14.25.030 are met. 

27



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 22 of 26 

 

C.  If the dwelling unit is within a residential zone, a calculation of the 

percentage of front yard and total lot area maintained in landscaping. 

 

D.  If the dwelling unit relies upon shared parking areas, a copy of a 

covenant or other binding legal instrument detailing unit owner rights 

and responsibilities related to the parking areas. 

 

 

14.25.020 Establishment of a Vacation Rental Overlay Zone 

 

A Vacation Rental Overlay Zone is hereby established identifying areas 

within the city limits where vacation rentals have been identified as 

compatible uses and areas where they are prohibited in order to protect 

the City’s supply of needed housing and character of residential 

neighborhoods.  The sole purpose of the Vacation Rental Overlay Zone 

is to identify where vacation rentals are permitted uses and does not 

alleviate a vacation rental from having to satisfy requirements that are 

otherwise applicable under the Newport Municipal Code. 

 

This provision or something similar to it is needed if the City 

intends to put in place an overlay zone.   

14.25.025  Allowed Locations 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

A.1.a  Home share and Bed & Breakfast use of a dwelling unit is 

permitted in all residential and commercial zone districts.   

 

A.1.b  Vacation rental use of a dwelling unit is permitted in those areas 

where they are identified as allowed uses on the Vacation Rental 

Overlay Map (Select Map Alternative). 

 

This section identifies where short term rental uses are allowed in 

the city.  The first alternative notes that bed and breakfast facilities 

are allowed in dwelling units throughout the city.  Vacation rentals 

are limited to areas where they have been identified as allowed 

uses, depending upon which of the three four map alternatives, or 

a hybrid of one of the alternatives, is selected.  The second 

alternative assumes that there will not be an overlay. 

 

Ad-hoc work group requested fourth map alternative that would 

prohibit vacation rentals in R-1 and R-2 zones.  Rationale is that 

those areas are the most removed from commercial activities and 

28



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 23 of 26 

or  

 

A.2  Short-term rental use of a dwelling unit is permitted in all 

residential and commercial zone districts.   

 

the larger lot sizes make them more prone to large gatherings and 

nuisance impacts that can be associated with such gatherings. 

14.25.030 Approval Standards 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

A.1. Density.  The total number of vacation rentals shall be capped at 

level not to exceed five (5) percent of the dwelling units within the city.  

A specific cap number shall be established by City Council resolution. 

 

or  

 

A.2. Density.  The total number of vacation rentals shall be capped at 

level not to exceed four (4) percent of the dwelling units within the 

city.  A specific cap number shall be established by City Council 

resolution. 

 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

B.1 Spacing.  In the R-1 and R-2 zones, not more than one vacation 

rental shall be located on a parcel or lot that abuts a street segment.  For 

corner lots, this standard applies to both street segments that abut that 

corner lot and only one vacation rental is permitted on the corner lots 

that abut the intersection.   

 

or 

 

This section sets out the land use approval standards for short-

term rentals.  It included a number of alternatives discussed by the 

ad-hoc work group. 

 

A density limit sets a cap on the number of permissible vacation 

rentals.  It does not apply to home shares or bed and breakfast 

facilities.  This would be a new provision, and the ad-hoc work 

group discussed establishing a hard cap between 220 200 and 

275300, which is roughly 4- 5% of the City’s housing stock.  This 

option allows the Council to specify the specific number and 

adjust it from time to time as additional housing units are 

constructed.  Alternatives include adjusting the percentage, 

applying the cap to specific geographic areas, or not imposing a 

density limit. 

 

For spacing standards, two options have been developed, one of 

which is limited to R-1 and R-2 zones and the other which also 

applies to R-3 and R-4 zones.  Maps have been developed 

showing how this would be implemented city wide.  The rules are 

mirrored after the code developed by the City of Durango, 

Colorado.  Some additional refinement to the standards may be 

needed for R-3 and R-4 zoned areas.  

 

Three options have been developed for overnight occupancy.  One 

retains the existing standard of two persons per bedroom, plus two 

14.25.050(A).  The second alternative drops the plus two but 

29



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 24 of 26 

B.2 Spacing.  In the R-1 and R-2 zones, not more than one vacation 

rental shall be located on a parcel or lot that abuts a street segment.  For 

corner lots, this standard applies to both street segments that abut that 

corner lot and only one vacation rental is permitted on the corner lots 

that abut the intersection.  In R-3 and R-4 zones, where both sides of 

the street segment are zoned for residential use, the same standards 

apply as those specified for R-1 and R-2 zones with the exception being 

that one multi-family dwelling or single dwelling is permitted per street 

segment. 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

C.1. Occupancy.  Maximum overnight occupancy for a short-term 

rental shall be two (2) persons per bedroom, plus two additional 

persons per property. 

 

or 

 

C.2. Occupancy.  Maximum overnight occupancy for a short-term 

rental shall be two (2) persons per bedroom, excluding children under 

three (3) years of age. 

 

or  

 

C.3. Occupancy.  Maximum overnight occupancy for a short-term 

rental shall be two (2) persons per bedroom. 

 

D. Guestroom Limitations.  The following limitations apply to the 

number of bedrooms within a dwelling unit that may be occupied by 

guests staying at a short-term rental. 

 

1. Vacation Rentals.  A maximum of five (5) bedrooms. 

 

exempts young children.  The last option drops the plus two and 

does not include a child exemption. 

 

Parking includes two options, one of which allows short-term 

rentals in parking districts to utilize on-street spaces to address 

parking needs just like other uses in the district, without the need 

for a Conditional Use Permit.  The second option would require 

short-term rentals in parking districts obtain approval of 

conditional use permits if they want to use on-street parking 

(current process).  The parking standards clarifies how off-street 

parking works for driveways that connect to under-developed 

streets, as discussed with the ad-hoc work group. 

 

Guestroom limitations are included for home shares and vacation 

rentals.  Landscaping and shared access provisions are similar to 

existing requirements listed in 14.25.050(E) and (K). 

 

Eliminated reference to overnight occupancy.  Maximum 

occupancy now applies to the maximum number of persons 

allowed in the rental at any time.  Second option for density set at 

a maximum of four percent.  Both added at the request of the ad-

hoc work group on 10/3/18.  

30



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 25 of 26 

2. Home shares.  A maximum of two (2) bedrooms. 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

E.1. Parking Standards.  One (1) off-street parking space per 

bedroom that is dedicated to short-term rental use.  Parking spaces shall 

comply with the dimensional standards of 14.14.090(A).  Off-street 

parking on driveways that extend into underdeveloped rights-of-way 

may be used to satisfy this requirement provided a stipulation is placed 

on the endorsement that the authorization may be revoked if the street 

is improved and driveway shortened. 

 

or 

 

E.2. Parking Standards.  One (1) off-street parking space per 

bedroom that is dedicated to short-term rental use, unless the dwelling 

unit is within a parking district as defined in 14.14.100, in which case 

on-street parking may be used to meet the one (1) space per bedroom 

requirement provided the parking is allocated in accordance with the 

requirements of the parking district.  Parking spaces shall comply with 

the dimensional standards of 14.14.090(A).  Off-street parking on 

driveways that extend into underdeveloped rights-of-way may be used 

to satisfy this requirement provided a stipulation is placed on the 

endorsement that the authorization may be revoked if the street is 

improved and driveway shortened. 

 

F. Shared Access.  Short-term rentals that rely upon use of shared 

access and parking areas may only be permitted if a covenant or other 

binding legal instrument establishes that the owner of the unit 

maintains exclusive use of the required parking space(s). 

 

G. Landscaping.  For short-term rentals situated on individual lots 

or parcels in residential zones, at least 50% of the front yard and 40% 

31



MARKUP COPY OF DRAFT VACATION RENTAL NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS   Ver. 2.0 (10/05/18) 

NEWPORT ZONING ORDINANCE (NO. 1308, AS AMENDED)    Page 26 of 26 

of the total area shall be landscaped. No more than 50% of the front 

yard landscaping may be impervious surfaces, such as patios and decks. 

Driveway and parking areas shall not satisfy any portion of these 

landscaping requirements. 

 

14.25.035  Non-Conforming Short-Term Rentals 

 

POLICY ALTERNATIVES 

 

A.1. The non-conforming use provisions of NMC Chapter 14.32 

shall apply to all short-term rentals that received endorsements prior to 

the effective date of this ordinance. 

 

or   

 

A.2. The non-conforming use provisions of NMC Chapter 14.32 

shall apply to all short-term rentals licensed prior to the effective date 

of this ordinance for a period of five (5) years, after which dwelling 

units shall comply with all applicable provisions of this chapter, except 

the spacing requirements of 14.25.030(B). 

 

or 

 

A.3. The non-conforming use provisions of NMC Chapter 14.32 

shall apply to all short-term rentals licensed prior to the effective date 

of this ordinance for a period of five (5) years, after which dwelling 

units shall comply with all applicable provisions of this chapter.  In 

cases where there are two or more vacation rentals along a street 

segment, the vacation rental with the oldest endorsement date shall be 

acknowledged as satisfying the spacing requirement of 14.25.030(B). 

 

This section includes three alternatives for addressing how 

existing short-rentals are impacted by these changes.  The first 

alternative is a grandfathering clause.  They would be allowed to 

continue to operate, without having to satisfy the standards in 

NMC Chapter 14.25, until the use is discontinued for a one year 

period.  The second alternative include amortization language that 

requires compliance with NMC Chapter 14.25 within 5-years, 

except for the spacing standards, which would be satisfied over 

time as licenses are not renewed.  The third option requires that all 

standards must be met in 5-years.  Under this option the oldest 

license would be used to resolve compliance issues with spacing 

standards. 

 
32



Chapter 227 Page 1 of 2

227.186 Notice to property owners of hearing on certain zone change; form of notice; exceptions;
reimbursement of cost. (1) As used in this section, “owner” means the owner of the title to real property or
the contract purchaser of real property, of record as shown on the last available complete tax assessment roll.

(2) All legislative acts relating to comprehensive plans, land use planning or zoning adopted by a city
shall be by ordinance.

(3) Except as provided in subsection (6) of this section, at least 20 days but not more than 40 days before
the date of the first hearing on an ordinance that proposes to amend an existing comprehensive plan or any
element thereof, or to adopt a new comprehensive plan, a city shall cause a written individual notice of a land
use change to be mailed to each owner whose property would have to be rezoned in order to comply with the
amended or new comprehensive plan if the ordinance becomes effective.

(4) At least 20 days but not more than 40 days before the date of the first hearing on an ordinance that
proposes to rezone property, a city shall cause a written individual notice of a land use change to be mailed to
the owner of each lot or parcel of property that the ordinance proposes to rezone.

(5) An additional individual notice of land use change required by subsection (3) or (4) of this section
shall be approved by the city and shall describe in detail how the proposed ordinance would affect the use of
the property. The notice shall:

(a) Contain substantially the following language in boldfaced type across the top of the face page
extending from the left margin to the right margin:

This is to notify you that (city) has proposed a land use regulation that may affect the permissible uses of
your property and other properties.

(b) Contain substantially the following language in the body of the notice:

On (date of public hearing), (city) will hold a public hearing regarding the adoption of Ordinance
Number . The (city) has determined that adoption of this ordinance may affect the permissible uses of
your property, and other properties in the affected zone, and may change the value of your property.

Ordinance Number

_____

is available for inspection at the

_______

City Hall located at
. A copy

of Ordinance Number

_____

also is available for purchase at a cost of_____
For additional information concerning Ordinance Number , you may call the (city) Planning

Department at_________

(6) At least 30 days prior to the adoption or amendment of a comprehensive plan or land use regulation
by a city pursuant to a requirement of periodic review of the comprehensive plan under ORS 197.628,
197.633 and 197.636, the city shall cause a written individual notice of the land use change to be mailed to
the owner of each lot or parcel that will be rezoned as a result of the adoption or enactment. The notice shall
describe in detail how the ordinance or plan amendment may affect the use of the property. The notice also
shall:

(a) Contain substantially the following language in boldfaced type across the top of the face page
extending from the left margin to the right margin:

This is to notify you that (city) has proposed a land use regulation that may affect the permissible uses of
your property and other properties.

(b) Contain substantially the following language in the body of the notice:

As a result of an order of the Land Conservation and Development Commission, (city) has proposed
Ordinance Number

_____.

(City) has determined that the adoption of this ordinance may affect the
permissible uses of your property, and other properties in the affected zone, and may change the value of
your property.

Ordinance Number

______

will become effective on (date).

https://www.oregonleg islature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors227.html 10/5/2018

33



Chapter 227 Page 2 of 2

Ordinance Number

_____

is available for inspection at the

_____

City Hall located at . A copy of
Ordinance Number

_____

also is available for purchase at a cost of_____
For additional information concerning Ordinance Number , you may call the (city) Planning

Department at_________

(7) Notice provided under this section may be included with the tax statement required under OR$
311.250.

(8) Notwithstanding subsection (7) of this section, a city may provide notice of a hearing at any time
provided notice is mailed by first class mail or bulk mail to all persons for whom notice is required under
subsections (3) and (4) of this section.

(9) for purposes of this section, property is rezoned when the city:
(a) Changes the base zoning classification of the property; or
(b) Adopts or amends an ordinance in a manner that limits or prohibits land uses previously allowed in

the affected zone.
(10) The provisions of this section do not apply to legislative acts of the governing body of the city

resulting from action of the Legislative Assembly or the Land Conservation and Development Commission
for which notice is provided under ORS 197.047 or resulting from an order of a court of competent
jurisdiction.

(11) The governing body of the city is not required to provide more than one notice under this section to a
person who owns more than one lot or parcel affected by a change to the local comprehensive plan or land
use regulation.

(12) The Department of Land Conservation and Development shall reimburse a city for all usual and
reasonable costs incurred to provide notice required under subsection (6) of this section. [1999 c.l §3; 1999
c.348 §11; 2003 c.668 §3]

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_Iaws/ors/ors227. html 10/5/2018

34


	Planning Commission Work Session Agenda
	2018-382 - Review of VRD Draft Code Amendments.pdf

